Public Document Pack

NORTH AND EAST PLANS PANEL
Meeting to be held in Civic Hall, Leeds on
Thursday, 28th July, 2022
at 1.30 pm

MEMBERSHIP
Councillors
N Sharpe
M Midgley
B Anderson
E Flint
A Lamb
R. Stephenson
J Akhtar (Chair)
H Bithell
D Jenkins
P Wray
Whips Nominee

Please do not attend the meeting in person if you have symptoms of Covid-19 and please
follow current public health advice to avoid passing the virus onto other people.
Note to observers of the meeting. To remotely observe this meeting, please click on the
‘View the Meeting Recording’ link which will feature on the meeting’s webpage (linked
below) ahead of the meeting. The webcast will become available at the commencement
of the meeting.
https://democracy.leeds.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=949&MId=11948&Ver=4

Agenda compiled by:
Debbie Oldham
Governance Services
Civic Hall
Produced on Recycled Paper

AGENDA

Item
No

Ward

Item Not
Open

Page
No
SITE VISIT LETTER

1

APPEALS AGAINST REFUSAL OF INSPECTION
OF DOCUMENTS
To consider any appeals in accordance with
Procedure Rule 15.2 of the Access to Information
Rules (in the event of an Appeal the press and
public will be excluded)
(*In accordance with Procedure Rule 15.2, written
notice of an appeal must be received by the Head
of Governance Services at least 24 hours before
the meeting)

2

EXEMPT INFORMATION - POSSIBLE
EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC

1

To highlight reports or appendices which
officers have identified as containing exempt
information, and where officers consider that
the public interest in maintaining the
exemption outweighs the public interest in
disclosing the information, for the reasons
outlined in the report.

2

To consider whether or not to accept the
officers recommendation in respect of the
above information.

3

If so, to formally pass the following
resolution:RESOLVED – That the press and public be
excluded from the meeting during
consideration of the following parts of the
agenda designated as containing exempt
information on the grounds that it is likely, in
view of the nature of the business to be
transacted or the nature of the proceedings,
that if members of the press and public were
present there would be disclosure to them of
exempt information, as follows:-

Item
No

Ward

Item Not
Open

Page
No
LATE ITEMS

3

To identify items which have been admitted to the
agenda by the Chair for consideration
(The special circumstances shall be specified in
the minutes)
DECLARATION OF INTERESTS

4

To disclose or draw attention to any interests in
accordance with Leeds City Council’s ‘Councillor
Code of Conduct’.
5

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

6

MINUTES - 30TH JUNE 2022

7 - 18

To consider the minutes of the meeting held on
30th June 2022, for approval as a correct record.
7

Roundhay

21/03299/FU – RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT
OF EIGHT NEW DWELLINGS WITH NEW
ACCESS ROAD, ASSOCIATED LANDSCAPING
AND PARKING, AT FORMER CO-OP CAR
PARK, OFF OAKWELL MOUNT, GLEDHOW,
LEEDS, LS8 4AD
To consider the report of the Chief Planning officer
on an application for residential development of
eight new dwellings with new access road,
associated landscaping and parking, at Former Coop Car Park, Off Oakwell Mount, Gledhow, Leeds,
LS8 4AD

8

DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING
To note the next meeting of North and East Plans
Panel will be on Thursday 25th August 2022 at
1.30pm in Civic Hall, Leeds.

2

19 42

Item
No

Ward

Item Not
Open

a)
b)

Third Party Recording
Recording of this meeting is allowed to enable those not present to see or hear the proceedings either as they take place (or later) and
to enable the reporting of those proceedings. A copy of the recording protocol is available from the contacts named on the front of this
agenda.
Use of Recordings by Third Parties– code of practice
a)
b)

Any published recording should be accompanied by a statement of when and where the recording was made, the context of
the discussion that took place, and a clear identification of the main speakers and their role or title.
Those making recordings must not edit the recording in a way that could lead to misinterpretation or misrepresentation of the
proceedings or comments made by attendees. In particular there should be no internal editing of published extracts;
recordings may start at any point and end at any point but the material between those points must be complete.

Page
No

Planning Services
Merrion House
Merrion Centre
Leeds

To all Members of North and East Plans
Panel

Contact: David Newbury
Tel: 0113 378 7990
david.m.newbury@leeds.gov.uk
Our reference: NE Site Visits
Date: 20th July 2022
Dear Councillor,
SITE VISITS – NORTH AND EAST PLANS PANEL – THURSDAY 28th July 2022
Prior to the meeting of the North & East Plans Panel on Thursday 28th July 2022 the following site
visit will take place:
Time
11.05am
11.20am –
11:45am
12.00 (noon)

Ward
Roundhay

Depart Civic Hall
Eight townhouses with new access road, associated
landscaping and parking at Former Co-op Car Park Off Oakwell
Mount, Gledhow, Leeds LS8 4AD
Return to Civic Hall

For those travelling by mini-bus please meet outside the Civic Hall, Portland Crescent entrance at
11.00am for a prompt start at 11.05am. For those unable to use the minibus, or who prefer to travel
separately, the visit timings and details above should allow for this. If you are making your own way
to the site please let me know and we will arrange an appropriate meeting point.

Yours sincerely

David Newbury
Group Manager
Planning Services

www.leeds.gov.uk

general enquiries 0113 222 4444

Page 5

®

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 6
NORTH AND EAST PLANS PANEL
THURSDAY, 30TH JUNE, 2022
PRESENT:

Councillor J Akhtar in the Chair
Councillors N Sharpe, M Midgley, A Lamb,
R. Stephenson, H Bithell, D Jenkins and
P Wray

CHAIRS OPENING REMARKS
The Chair welcomed everybody to the meeting and paid thanks to Councillor
C Gruen as former Chair of the North and East Plans Panel. The Chair, on
behalf of the Panel wished Councillor C Gruen all the best in her new role
within the Council.
1

Appeals Against Refusal of Inspection of Documents
There were no appeals against the refusal of inspection of documents.

2

Exempt Information - Possible Exclusion of the Press and Public
There were no exempt items.

3

Late Items
There were no formal late items.

4

Declaration of Interests
No declarations were made at the meeting.

5

Apologies for Absence
Apologies were received from Councillors Anderson and Flint. Councillor
Smith attended as a substitute for Councillor Anderson.

6

Minutes - 12 May 22
RESOLVED – That the minutes of the meeting held Thursday, 12th May 2022
be approved as an accurate record.

7

21/04468/FU - on land at Red Hall Lane, Red Hall, Leeds
The report of the Chief Officer updated Panel Members on the current full
planning application for the residential development of 360 new build
dwellings, conversion of offices to form 2 apartments in the Old Farmhouse,
refurbishment and extension of Gate House, conversion of outbuildings to
Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Thursday, 28th July, 2022

Page 7

form garages, bin, and cycle store: and associated works, on land at Red Hall
Lane, Red Hall, Leeds.
It was noted that an earlier pre-application presentation was made to the City
Plans Panel on 8th April 22 and appended to the report included a copy of the
minutes from that meeting.
Members had attended a site visit and were shown slides and photographs
throughout the officer presentation.
The Planning Officer presented the application, providing the following
information:
 Clarifying correct order of appendices to the report.
 The site is located to the north of existing main urban area and spans
between the existing Ring Road (A6120) and Wetherby Road (A58).
 The former Council horticultural nursery has since been replaced by
the temporary East Leeds Orbital Route (ELOR) works depot. It was
noted that ELOR is currently under construction.
 Site characteristics of the two broad development areas were provided.
 The site is owned by the Council and sale will lead to a capital receipt.
 There is a separate application relating to the Red Hall House site
which is separately owned and not included within the red line.
 Detailed layout of housing and design issues – a suggestion has been
made by officers to connect the streets instead of having a number of
cul-de-sacs.
 A conservation issue has been identified by officers with the dwellings
to the west of Red Hall House, which is a listed building. The current
layout is considered to harm the setting of the Listed Building.
Consequently – a suggestion has been made to reconfigure the area
to include a landscaped area / greenspace to provide a visual buffer. It
was noted that there are a number of design matters to be addressed
in the scheme.
 Officers provided an overview of the housing mix and explained the
proposed mix was not consistent with planning policy. It was explained
that the re-consideration of the layout will provide an opportunity to revisit housing mix.
 An overview of house types was provided.
 There are various clusters of affordable housing across the site and
blocks of flats.
 The woodland has been retained and additional tree planting has been
proposed across the site, as well as a green buffer to the site’s
boundary with ELOR.
 There are concerns from residents living on Red Hall Lane that with a
possible increase in traffic and road users, the proposed spine road
may be used as a ‘rat run’. However, officers noted that parts of the
site did not meet accessibility standards. To help address this, it is
considered appropriate to design the spine road so that it can
accommodate potential public transport penetration in the future. This
would necessitate the width of the road being increased. Due to the
Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Thursday, 28th July, 2022

Page 8

proximity of ELOR and the Ring Road officers considered that it would
not be useful as a ‘rat run’. The West Yorkshire Combined Authority
(WYCA) also supported designing the spine road so that it can
accommodate buses. This could facilitate the use of the road by ondemand buses.
 Officers noted that careful thought should be given to a spine road
through the site to enable potential public transport penetration in the
future and that two points of access would be required for a
development of this scale.
 Showed sections of the spine road with different proposed widths
outlining the public transport that could be provided on these routes
and discussed the need for the route to be narrower in places to avoid
the loss of hedgerows and trees.
 A further representation has been received following publication of the
report from a resident on Red Hall Lane relaying concerns regarding
the number of houses proposed, loss of greenery, management of
green space, access points and widening Red Hall Lane.
Representatives from Redrow and Optima attended the meeting in support of
the application and explained they are unable to amend the design of the
application before a decision on the through road is made. They were of the
view that Highways have requested a through road, however, residents and
elected members do not want one.
In response to questions from Members, the following was confirmed:
 In the current design the “through road” is a narrower corridor to avoid
the route becoming a rat run. The Red Hall Planning Brief does not
anticipate a spine road through the site. It would be possible to widen
the route to provide a bus connection.
 There are no alternative access points to the proposed site from
Wetherby Road.
 The eastern half of the site is currently allocated for employment use.
 Historic England have asked that the design of Red Hall be respected.
 If a spine road is considered, there will be a loss of existing trees and
verges.
 There is scope to re-look at housing mix in terms of more 3-bed homes
and less 4-bed homes.
Councillor P Grahame attended the meeting and explained that her main
concern is ‘rat running’ issues from Red Hall Lane through to the Ring Road.
In response to a question from a Member, Councillor P Grahame confirmed
that widening the roads to reduce the overall number of houses is deemed
acceptable.
Responding to questions from Members, officers informed the Panel with the
following information:
 Design guidance states that a development with over 200 houses
requires 2 access points. Further considerations in terms of placemaking and public transport penetration will need to be looked at.
Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Thursday, 28th July, 2022

Page 9















Officers want to ensure the development is future proofed to enable a
bus route to access the site and to ensure accessibility of the site for
residents. Provision for street trees, verges and cycle and pedestrian
provision are being considered.
Additional road infrastructure is being delivered to mitigate ‘rat running’
problems on the through road. Additionally, it was confirmed that the
through road is considered a ‘connector street’ to connect the
development to external areas and is not a main road that encourages
‘rat running’.
There is a ramp accessed to the bridge over ELOR for cycling. Officers
are pushing to put other links to the ELOR route and existing ring road.
The Northern Quadrant outline planning consent requires Red Hall
Lane to be closed east to Wetherby Road to address safety concerns.
Alternative routes for existing residents were discussed.
Members believed revising existing bus routes will impact existing
residents accessing public transport. It was confirmed that the future of
how bus services will operate is not confirmed. However, officers do
not want to preclude a bus service running through the proposed site. It
was also noted that there are a significant number of houses in the
proposed site that are over 400m from existing bus stops, and
accessibility will need to be improved.
Officers explained that place-making is a consideration around design
and layout of the proposals, to include greenery and being able to
distinguish one street from another.
In response to a question regarding future proofing mass transit,
officers explained that should this be delivered, it will be on main
arterial routes in the city with key radial routes. This will not be a
consideration for this development.
There is currently no policy basis on which to consider a mass transit
and any future mass transit system would likely be on main arterial
routes through Leeds. Feedback on flexi buses (Demand Responsive
Transport, or DRT) can be obtained from WYCA, and it was noted that
sustainability of such service cannot yet be confirmed.
There could be a commuted sum for bus stops on site.
Additional bus stop provision on the ring road would be un-likely to
improve accessibility to the development.

Members comments included:
 Whilst it was acknowledged that the closure of Red Hall Lane relates to
the Northern Quadrant application, Members commented that there is
a missed opportunity to improve the junction and looking at how to
make the crossroads better in general.
 Whether there is a need for a bus route to go through the site and
further consideration regarding amenities on the site, particularly for
older residents. Members suggested that officers utilise transport
services outside of the site.
 Speeding opportunities relating to the spine road.
 Queried whether a bus could be provided on a narrower route and
whether it would be diverted from an existing route.
Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Thursday, 28th July, 2022

Page 10




Could the estate be future proofed for a mass transit system. To create
a buffer around Red Hall to the western side.
A suggestion was made to receive some feedback on the impact of
traffic from ELOR once this is operational.

The following responses were summarised in relation to officer questions in
the submitted report:
1. What comments do Members have in respect of the design and layout,
particularly in relation to the spine road? The general feeling from Members is
not to encourage a bus route through the site along the spine road. Officers
will take this away.
2. Do Members have any comments to make in respect of conservation
matters? More of a buffer is required to the west of the site of Red Hall listed
buildings.
3. Are there any observations Members would wish to make in respect of
housing provision, including regarding the house-flat ratio, no. of bed units,
and affordable housing proposed? Members suggested that housing mix is
reconsidered and should include more 3-bed homes.
4. Do Members have any observations in relation to the landscape proposals?
It was noted that the landscape proposals may change because of members
comments in relation to the through road and bus route.
5. Do Members have any observations in relation to transport and
connectivity, particularly in relation to the spine road? Members requested
that connectivity within the site is improved but to also consider wider links to
ELOR and the Ring Road outside of the site.
RESOLVED – To note the content of the report on the proposal and to
provide views in relation to the questions posed in the submitted report to aid
the progression of the application.
8

PREAPP/19/00258 - on land east of Wetherby Road and Coal Road,
Whinmoor, Leeds
The report of the Chief Planning Officer informed Members of a preapplication for a reserved matters application relating to the first phase of the
Whinmoor Fields “Northern Quadrant”, East Leeds Extension development
comprising 423 dwellings with public open space on land east of Wetherby
Road and Coal Road, Whinmoor, Leeds.
Members had attended a site visit and were shown slides and photographs
throughout the officer presentation.
The Planning Officer and representatives from Permission Homes Ltd
presented the application, providing the following information:
 The outline planning consent was submitted prior to ELOR being
pursued by the Council.
Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Thursday, 28th July, 2022

Page 11











There is a proposed two form entry primary school and local centre
(including health facilities and retail) to be provided as part of the wider
Northern Quadrant development.
The site is located to the north of the existing main urban area and
spans between Wetherby Road (A58) to the west, Red Hall Lane, and
Skelton Lane to the south and a field boundary east of Coal Road.
There is a public transport route wide enough for buses to pass
through with setback houses, a segregated cycleway, footway, and
tree planting.
A layout of the proposals was provided including a description of
bicycle accessibility.
The proposed character areas of the residential development were
described.
An overview of public open spaces and green infrastructure included in
the proposals was provided.
It was noted that there is 15% provision of Affordable Housing on site
with the proposed layout indicating 65 units and providing accessible
housing.
Sustainability measures include high levels of insulation and EV
charging points proposed.
An overview of the public consultation undertaken online and drop-in
exhibitions.

In response to questions from Members, the following was confirmed:
 Developer will consider a “gateway feature” at the entrance from the
roundabout.
 There is parking to the rear of the apartments, and parking spaces
have been set to the side of dwellings to reduce on-street parking.
Members also raised concerns about refuse collection.
 In response to concerns relating to pollution and air quality from ELOR,
officers noted that this is subject to conditions attached to the outline
planning permission and that the applicant is liaising with consultants
on this matter.
 The site will be equipped with a local play area that will be fenced,
accessible greenspace, cycle ways and footways. Members asked that
play equipment is fully inclusive for all children and to consider not
fencing in the play area and to be more creative with such
considerations.
 ELOR is intended to take the bulk of traffic and the closure of Red Hall
Lane will be monitored.
 Members requested that the applicant do more in terms of creative play
spaces, as well as working on landscape proposals. It was confirmed
that the applicant will consider community spaces / allotments, as well
as places for residents / children to sit.
 Measures will be in place in terms of grey water and recycling.
 The first phase of the site will use gas boilers and further clarity is
required regarding the future heating of homes on the site.
 The opening of the school is dependent on triggers being reached in
the S106 Agreement requiring the transfer of the necessary land to the
Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Thursday, 28th July, 2022

Page 12



Council or an Education Body (by 459 dwellings). Separately, the
developers are to pay contributions towards the funding of the school.
Discussed greenspace outside of red line, owned by Samuel Smith’s
Brewery.

Councillor P Grahame attended the meeting and explained that her main
concern, as well as her constituents related to the closure of Red Hall Lane.
Residents use this road to access Wetherby and Shadwell. Further concerns
were relayed regarding possible ‘rat running’ issues relating to the proposals.
Panel Members discussed concerns regarding the closure of Red Hall Lane
and were keen to identify a way to keep this road open for existing residents.
Officers confirmed that whilst there is not a formal mechanism at this moment
in time to remove the condition relating to the closure of Red Hall Lane,
officers have noted Members comments and will have regard to these when
the considering this issue in the future.
Members relayed comments in relation to the officers questions in the
submitted report:
1. Do Members support the emerging principles in respect of the design and
layout? Comments were made regarding the entrance of the site from ELOR.
Members were of the view that the proposed apartment block would not
provide an attractive feature. It was considered that the layout should be
amended so that dwellings should be sited, to the north and south of the
entrance road, so that they look out across the site’s access road towards
ELOR. There is also an opportunity to include a gateway feature.
2. Are there any observations Members would wish to make in respect of
housing provision, including regarding the house-flat ratio, no. of bed units,
and affordable housing proposed? It was suggested, as mentioned in
response to question 1, that the location of apartments on the entrance be reconsidered.
3. Do Members have any observations in relation to the landscape proposals?
Issues were raised in relation to the proximity of the northern boundary to
ELOR and concerns regarding air pollution and the need for further buffer
planting.
4. Do Members have any observations in relation to transport and
connectivity? There are concerns regarding on-street parking and further work
needs to be done around discouraging on-street parking along the spine road.
5. Are there any other matters which Members would wish to raise? Members
highlighted the importance of ensuring open spaces are accessible and to
include inclusive play areas for all children. Officers were also encouraged to
utilise the woodland for informal recreation purposes. Members also
suggested that the proposals include some form of community space, such as
allotments or ‘grow your own’ spaces. Furthermore, officers noted comments
Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Thursday, 28th July, 2022

Page 13

regarding the closure of Red Hall Lane and will take this forward in future
considerations relating to the proposals.
RESOLVED – To note the content of the report on the proposal and to
provide views in relation to the questions posed in the submitted report to aid
the progression of the application.
9

21/08380/FU - on land at Railway Street, Saxton Gardens, Leeds, LS9
The report of the Chief Planning Officer set out a Position Statement to Panel
Members regarding a development comprising 58 apartments for affordable
rent, including communal and ancillary spaces on land at Railway Street,
Saxton Gardens, Leeds, LS9.
The proposed development includes a five-storey apartment building, parking
area, amenity space and landscaping. The building would contain 58
apartments with a split of 28 x 1-bed, 25 x 2-bed and 5 x 3-bed. It was
confirmed the scheme is 100% affordable housing with all apartments set at
social rent.
Members had attended a site visit and were shown slides and photographs
throughout the officer presentation.
The Planning Officer presented the application, providing the following
information:
 The site lies to the South of Railway Street, on the site former
Yorkshire Riders Sport and Social Club and to the west of the site is an
Energy Centre. The railway viaduct lies to the north and the Saxton
Gardens estate to the south.
 The area is expected to see significant growth with several recent
planning approvals for large high-rise developments including two
apartment buildings ranging from 6 to 22 storeys, one residential
development ranging from 15 to 20 storeys and five residential
buildings ranging from 12 to 22 storeys.
 Members were provided with an overview of the layout of the site and
shown photographs of the elevations of the proposals.
 It was confirmed that the proposed housing mix overprovides on flats
and underprovides on 3 bed dwellings. Although it was noted that the
scheme provides 100% affordable housing.
 There are also issues in terms of designated green space and the area
proposed falling below minimum standards of the Core Strategy. Whilst
there is a loss of greenspace, the application proposes improvements
to the remaining area of green space and a commuted sum of 11k to
be spent on local green space improvements in consultation with
residents and ward members.
 The private amenity provision is below the recommended quantity set
out in the Neighbourhoods for Living Supplementary Planning
Document (SPD). The current proposal only achieves 14.2%
representing a shortfall of 385m2.
Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Thursday, 28th July, 2022

Page 14




Highways have submitted an objection requesting that further
pedestrian safety measures are implemented.
General concerns remain outstanding regarding traffic.

Mr Jackson and Ms Chambers attended the meeting and were available for
questions from Panel Members. In responding to questions, the following was
confirmed:
 There are mitigation issues with the height of the building should this
exceed 16.5m. it was also mentioned that there are safety issues
regarding balconies on higher storeys due to air pollution. Officers to
investigate this further. Members raised concern regarding the quality
of life for residents in terms of amenity space and suggested there is
an opportunity with the proposal being revised to include additional
storeys.
 In response to a comment regarding the implementation of a roof
terrace, it was noted there are issues surrounding the requirements to
meet in terms of mitigating carbon emissions.
 A Member suggested that ground floor flats with private gardens be
predominantly 3-bed flats to accommodate families on a longer-term
basis. In response, it was suggested that there are structural issues
and will add additional costs to the scheme.
 Members referred to the site visit and acknowledged there was a lot of
traffic near the scheme and queried safety measures for pedestrians.
The Panel discussed further options in terms of this such as a crossing
and extending the footway.
 A member suggested implementing green walls, and in response, it
was confirmed that the maintenance is problematic. The proposal
includes an addition of trees across the site.
 Members questioned the potential right to acquire these properties, in
response it was suggested that the discount would not likely be great
so it was un-likely that they would be attractive to acquire. Officers to
consider this further.
For clarity, officers confirmed that a condition relating to the extension of the
footway will be difficult to incorporate if the applicant has been unwilling
previously. It was suggested that members make a recommendation to
instruct officers to negotiate extending the footway with the applicant and to
explore the cost and provision of the footpath.
Comments from Panel Members included:
 A member believed that due to Leeds City Council having ownership
rights over the land the proposal sits on, it is up to the council to ensure
the viability of the site. There is a missed opportunity if the housing mix
isn’t correct in this location and the loss of greenspace and amenity for
residents.
 There is a requirement for additional 3-bed flats in this location.
 Members were keen to push for the extension of the footway along the
south side of Railway Street.

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Thursday, 28th July, 2022

Page 15

The following points were summarised in relation to the officers’ questions in
the report:
Question 1: Do Members wish to comment on the proposed housing mix
proposed by the applicant in light of the requirements of Core Strategy Policy
H4? Are there any observations Members would wish to make in respect of
the housing mix proposed? Members suggested that the ground floor can be
utilised by 3-bed flats and the proposal should include additional 3-bed flats.
Question 2: Do Members consider the wider planning benefits and proposed
green space improvements justify the loss of existing greenspace and, in
doing so, satisfy Core Strategy Policy G6? Do Members have any further
comments on the proposed greenspace improvements? Members accepted
the loss of greenspace but suggested the applicant can be more creative in
terms of resident’s amenity and density of the building. It was also mentioned
that additional outdoor space with creative thinking can be provided.
Question3: Do Members consider the proposed level of private amenity space
acceptable? Members highlighted the importance of providing enough
amenity space for residents and suggested that additional efforts are to be
made to look at the design and provide as much space as possible.
Question 4: Do Members consider further connections / linkages are required
and, if so, should this be achieved by extending the foot path along the south
side of Railway Street? Members stressed the importance that a footpath is
required and will be a fundamental part of the scheme and urged officers to
discuss further with the applicant.
RESOLVED - To note the content of the report on the proposal and to provide
views in relation to the questions posed in the submitted report to aid the
progression of the application.
10

PREAPP/21/00406 - Fearnville Leisure Centre and park, Oakwood Lane,
LS8 3LF
The report of the Chief Planning Officer presented a pre-application
presentation to inform Members of the proposals for the construction of a
replacement Wellbeing Centre building and wider site improvements at
Fearnville Leisure Centre and park, Oakwood Lane, LS8 3LF.
Members were shown slides and photographs throughout the officer
presentation.
Officers in attendance presented the application, providing the following
information to the Panel:
 Highways have raised no objections, further information is required on
the transport assessment, travel plan and cycling provision.
 An overview of the site history.
 The site as existing include facilities that have been run down over time
and current proposals include play areas, skate park, BMX track, tennis
Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Thursday, 28th July, 2022

Page 16










courts and wider playing fields with biodiversity improvements across
the site.
The Wellbeing Centre is placed in the middle of the site.
There are a number of activity stations proposed through the site.
Improved surveillance.
The car park will be extended to account for the increase in capacity
and the existing footpath through the site will be retained and
enhanced. A separate cycle route will run alongside the footpath to the
North.
Creating more prominence from the site area and considerations
around signage and making people aware of the facilities onsite.
An overview of the public consultations held, and comments received.
Members were shown a number of photographs of the proposals,
including some examples of the play areas, building layout, internal
sketches and facilities.

Councillor S Arif attended the meeting and highlighted the positive benefits of
the Wellbeing Centre and explained that this will be a much-welcomed
proposal for the community that will benefit the whole of East Leeds. Whilst it
was welcomed, Councillor Arif urged that transport links and access to the site
must be right from different parts of Leeds. Finally, it was acknowledged that
some of the highest health inequalities are residents from East Leeds,
particularly Inner East areas, and it was noted that this proposal will improve
inequalities.
Members comments included:
 Fearnville Leisure Centre is one of the oldest sports centres in Leeds
and the development will promote a positive outcome for residents in
the area.
 To include effective functional gym equipment.
 Discussion of how anti-social behaviour could be designed out of the
site.
 Accessibility and transport to the site needs to be thought through.
 Important to address existing health inequalities.
 Members were generally supportive of the proposals and were keen to
see the development go ahead.
The following points were summarised in relation to officers’ questions in the
report:
Question 1. Do Members consider the proposed siting of the new Wellbeing
Centre to be acceptable? Yes.
Question 2. Are Members supportive of the emerging design for the building?
Yes.
Question 3. Do Members have any comments on the accessibility
arrangements for the site? Members broadly provided general support for the
scheme and considered the proposal a good facility for residents and the
surrounding communities.
Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Thursday, 28th July, 2022

Page 17

Members unanimously agreed that future considerations relating to this
proposal, will be agreed by officers in the future rather than coming back to
Plans Panel in the future.
RESOLVED –
a) To note the contents of the report on the proposal and provide general
support across the Panel to progress the application.
b) To agree that future considerations of the proposal will be considered
by officers and delegated to the Chief Planning Officer for
consideration.
11

Date and Time of Next Meeting
The date and time of the next meeting will be held Thursday, 28th July 2022 at
1.30pm.
(The meeting concluded at 17:00)

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Thursday, 28th July, 2022

Page 18

Agenda Item 7
Originator:

Umar Dadhiwala

Tel:

0113 378 8

Report of the Chief Planning Officer
NORTH AND EAST PLANS PANEL
Date: 28th July 2022
Subject: 21/03299/FU – Residential development of eight new dwellings with new access
road, associated landscaping and parking, at Former Co-op Car Park, Off Oakwell Mount,
Gledhow, Leeds, LS8 4AD
APPLICANT
Amberstone Developments
(West Yorkshire) Ltd

DATE VALID
04.05.2021

TARGET DATE
10.08.2021

Electoral Wards Affected:

Specific Implications For:

Roundhay

Equality and Diversity
Community Cohesion

Yes

Ward Members consulted
(referred to in report)

Narrowing the Gap

RECOMMENDATION: DEFER AND DELEGATE to the Chief Planning Officer for
approval subject to the conditions specified below, and any amendment to the same
or addition of others which the Chief Planning Officer considers appropriate, and
subject to the completion of a Section 106 agreement to secure the following:
•

Contribution for off-site highway works for a Traffic Regulation Order (£10.000).

In the circumstances where the Section 106 has not been completed within 3 months
of the Panel resolution to grant planning permission, the final determination of the
application shall be delegated to the Chief Planning Officer.
1.
2.
3.
4.
6.
7.
9.
10.

Time Limit
Plans to be approved
Walling and roofing materials
Driveway materials (porous surfacing)
Details of fences and boundary treatment
Hard and soft landscaping
Landscape management plan
Details of safe removal of Japanese knot weed
Page 19

11. Plots 2, 4, 6 and 7 to be constructed to meet M4(2) Building Regulations.
12. Details of cycle parking and facilities
13. Electric Vehicle Charging Points
14. Off-site highway works as shown on plan 2024.04.01 Rev F comprising a new
vehicular access and associated traffic regulation order at the site entrance of
Oakwell Mount shall be fully delivered.
15. Additional technical approval and permissions to be submitted including an Approval
In Principle (AIP), for structures impacting the adopted highway.
16. Internal road layout to be built to adoptable standards and offered for adoption under
Section 38 of the Highways Act 1980. The applicant to make early contact with
s38@leeds.gov.uk to initiate the Section 38 process.
17. Statement of construction practice including details of vehicle routing, means of
access, location of site compound, storage and parking (including workforce
parking), means of loading and unloading of all contractors' plant, equipment,
materials and vehicles and associated traffic management measures.
18. The Contractor should provide a Statement of Construction Practice and a Risk
Assessment for the piling works. Including measures to protect the existing
properties nearby from the noise and vibration generated by the piling works in line
with government and Environmental Agency guidance. Measures to ensure the
structural integrity of the properties nearby is not affected. A program with the
duration of the piling works and a strategy to inform residents of the proposed works.
19. The Contractor to undertake ground investigations and site inspections to identify the
location, type and depth of the foundations of 29 and 31 Oakwell Mount
20. Drainage works to be undertaken in accordance with the External Works Plan
8010/020 Rev. P9 and the other supporting documents that relate to drainage
details.
21. Details of proposed and existing ground levels and finished floor levels to be
submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority.
22. Use of water butts.
23. Details of and implementation of tree protection during construction.
INTRODUCTION:
1.

The application is brought to the North and East Plans Panel for consideration at the
request of Councillor Lisa Martin, who has raised the following concerns:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

The construction of a gated community, with no access directly to the supermarket.
It is not clear how the foul water drainage from five houses 25, 25A, 27, 27A and 29
(Oakwell Mount), that passes under the development site will be managed, given
that the proposed road will be unadopted.
There are several revised plans that have been submitted, which has caused
confusion on what is being proposed.
It is unclear how the developer plans to remove soil that will be excavated from the
site during the construction process, and what impact this and other construction
traffic will have on residents.
The large number of objections that have been raised by members of the public.
The style and size of the proposed dwellings not being in-keeping with the style and
size of the dwellings that generally exists within the area.
The proposed dwellings being much taller than any of the neighbouring houses and
would thus appear dominant and overbearing from nearby dwellings.
Inappropriate loss of amenity caused by the proposal's massing, over-bearing and
proximity, especially to both 27 and 27A Oakwell Mount.
The lack of access directly to Oakwell shopping centre.
Page 20

2.

The concerns raised by the Ward Councilor have been addressed within the report.

3.

As the matters raised by the Ward Councillor are based on material planning considerations
that give rise to concerns affecting more than neighbouring properties, the request meets
tests set out in the Officer Scheme of Delegation and it is appropriate to report the
application to Panel for determination.
SITE AND SURROUNDINGS:

4.

The site is approximately 0.47 hectares in size and was previously used as a car park to a
former supermarket (currently occupied by Home Bargains retail store). The site has been
boarded off from customer use and the applicant states that Home Bargains retail store do
not benefit from a legal right to use the car park and that the parking area is in separate
ownership.

5.

The application site features the former car park, which is fairly level with the land along its
eastern boundaries and the retail units to the east. The site, however, rises steeply up an
embankment to a plateau along the western and northern boundaries. The steep
embankment is landscaped with trees. There is a slight cross fall from north-west to southeast on the projection of land extending out to Oakwell Mount. There are other trees within
the site which benefit from Tree Preservation Orders (TPO) including prominent trees that
are located close to the new access road.

6.

The site is located within Oakwood Town Centre, as identified in Core Strategy Policy P1
and designated by SAP Policy RTC1. The site lies behind the main shopping frontage of
the centre and does not form part of a Primary Shopping Area or any protected shopping
frontage. The boundary of the Gledhow Valley Conservation Area is located to the
northeast and to the east of the site

7.

Currently, the site is accessed off Gledhow Rise but this access is proposed to be closed
off under the proposed scheme. The submitted block plan proposes to access the site off
Oakwell Mount between two dwellings.

8.

The dwellings in the area are generally two storey semi-detached structures. The
commercial buildings on the small High Street to the east are two to three storey structures
that take a varied form and design. A dominant feature of the area is the large roadside
trees, which gives it a leafy suburban feel.
PROPOSALS:

9.

The applicant seeks full planning consent for eight semi-detached dwellings set across four
blocks. Each of the blocks will be similar in design, set over three floors and include rooms
in the roof space. The footprint of the semi-detached blocks will measure approximately
9.6m by 9.8m (not including garage). The structures will be approximately 10.4m in height.
The construction material includes stone and render. The dwellings will have three
bedrooms each.

10.

The properties each include private front and rear gardens with private parking spaces.
Some of the dwellings will also include attached garage space.

11.

The site will be accessed from a single access point taken from the residential estate of
Oakwell Mount. The new access point will be created over an overgrown parcel of land
between No’s. 29 and 31 Oakwell Mount. There are three trees mature trees close to this
overgrown land, two of which are proposed to be removed. Other landscape features
include the mature trees that are located on top of the embankment along the western and
Page 21

northern boundaries. Approximately 9 additional trees are proposed to be planted within the
site to supplement the existing landscaping. New native hedging is also proposed
particularly along the eastern boundary between the application site and the adjacent retail
units.
RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY:
12.

As has been mentioned, the site was previously used as a car park, and associated with a
supermarket, now occupied by Home Bargains. The Home Bargains retail store does not
benefit from a legal right to use the car park and the parking area is in separate ownership.

13.

There have been many applications made over the years that relate to minor alterations to
the associated retail unit, but these do not appear to be relevant to this application.
Importantly, none of the historic planning applications have been found to link this site to the
formally associated retail unit.

14.

In 2019 an application was made proposing a block of 49 apartments in a three to five storey
building. The application was refused for the following reasons:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Failure of the scheme to make adequate provisions for affordable housing
Inadequate Public Green Space previsions
The scheme failed to demonstrate whether the development had been designed to
mitigate the effects of climate change
The scale and design of the building harming the character of the area
Potential harmful impact upon TPO trees.
Harmful impact upon the amenity of No's. 27a and 29 Oakwell Mount by way of
dominance.
Substandard living conditions being afforded to future occupants as a result of the
poor level of outlook and sunlight to some of the flats and the wholly inadequate level
of outdoor private amenity space being proposed.

HISTORY OF NEGOTIATIONS:
15.

During the course of the planning application the plans originally submitted have been
amended. The following amendments have been made through negotiations:
•

•

•

The original plans showed nine houses, with a continuous block of parking to the
front. The parking area was considered to harm the visual appearance of the
proposed estate. Therefore, the scheme was amended, and the development was
reduced from nine to eight houses. This allowed the parking area to the front to be
broken up and further spaces to be created to the side of the individual dwellings.
Planning Officers considered that the original scheme did not provide adequate
landscaping to allow for a biodiversity net gain on the site. As a result, an amended
landscape scheme was submitted that proposed a much more meaningful landscape
scheme.
The proposed plans showed a private road with access gates to the front. Following
comments from the Highway Team in relation to the requirement for development of
more than five dwellings to be designed to adoptable standards, discussions were
held with the applicant and the access was re-designed to the required standards.

PUBLIC/LOCAL RESPONSES:
16.

The application has been advertised by site notices which were posted on 03.06.2021. A
second set of site notice were printed on 14.07.2022, this followed a change in the
description of the application. As a result of this publicity, a total of 25 letters of objection
Page 22

have been received. The objections have been duly considered by officers and the Council
have tried to address these local concerns which can be summarised as relating to the
following issues:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Large number of trees have been removed from the site some of which may have
been TPO trees.
The applicant has not notified neighbours of the proposed development.
The City Council has not adequately advertised the planning application.
Adverse impact on wildlife.
Highway safety issues around the access point.
The proposed parking restrictions at the access point (double yellows) would push
on street parking issues further up the residential street of Oakwood Mount.
The excessive height of the proposed dwellings would adversely impact the
neighbouring residential dwellings by way of overshadowing, overlooking, and
dominance.
The close proximity of the proposed new access road to neighbouring dwellings,
will cause disturbance by way of noise from comings and goings.
The new gates at the access point to the development would cause noise issues,
when the gates are open and closed.
Discrepancies in the supporting documents with regards to the size of the dwellings
and the number of bedrooms being proposed and with regards to the tree within
Plot 6 not being subject to a TPO.
The drainage pipes for the adjacent dwellings being located within plot 6, which
raises concerns in relation to potential access for the repair and maintenance of the
pipes.
The three storey dwelling appearing out of scale with the surrounding dwellings and
thus having a negative impact upon the character of the area.
Highways safety concern in relation to bins being collected at the access point.
The residential development not being compatible with the adjacent commercial
units in that the future occupants would be subjected to a high level of noise.
Alternative uses for the site should be sought.
The dwellings potentially being converted into HMO’s.
The development should have direct access to the adjacent retail unit.
The kitchen area is proposed within the dwellings are too small.
A full survey is required of the landscape outside the site.
A topographical survey is required given the difference in land levels within the site.
Due to the differences in land levels, the proposed garden areas are not usable.
Presence of Japanese knotweed within the site, and inadequate discussions within
the supporting documents as to how this will be removed.
Exposure of the foundations of No. 29, due to the proposed excavation works.

17.

The occupant of No. 31 Oakwell Mount has supported the application and states that the
housing development is in keeping with this suburban environment. The occupant of No.31
however comments that the Council should ensure that the land adjacent to No.31 is not
destabilised during the construction period.

18.

Leeds Civic Trust make the following comments:
•
•
•
•
•

The site is not suitable for housing.
TPO trees being felled.
Poor design.
In adequate garden space being proposed.
It is not clear where the solar panels would be positioned.
Page 23

19.

Councillor Lisa Martin has raised the following concerns:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

The construction of a gated community, with no access directly to the supermarket.
It is not clear how the foul water drainage from five houses 25, 25A, 27, 27A and 29
(Oakwell Mount), that passes under the development site will be managed, given
that the proposed road will be unadopted.
There are several revised plans that have been submitted, which has caused
confusion on what is being proposed.
It is unclear how the developer plans to remove soil that will be excavated from the
site during the construction process, and what impact this and other construction
traffic will have on residents.
The large number of objections that have been raised by members of the public.
The style and size of the proposed dwellings not being in-keeping with the style and
size of the dwellings that generally exists within the area.
The proposed dwellings being much taller than any of the neighbouring houses and
would thus appear dominant and overbearing from nearby dwellings.
Inappropriate loss of amenity caused by the proposal's massing, over-bearing and
proximity, especially to both 27 and 27A Oakwell Mount.
The lack of access directly to Oakwell shopping centre.

CONSULTATION RESPONSES:
20.

Highways: Latest comments in relation to revised plans state that scheme has provided a
revised Housing Layout which shows 8 units instead of 9 units. The internal road layout
remains the same and the car parking provision is also adequate, with cycle storage and
bin stores being shown for all houses. Highways Team have no objections to the amended
layout subject to the recommended conditions and the contributions towards off site
highways works via a S106.

21.

Landscape Team: Do not raise objection to the scheme and states that the additional tree
planting shown on the revised plans are welcomed. With regard to the loss of the trees at
the proposed access point it is noted that the trees are close together with ivy growing far
up the stems which diminishes the quality of the individual specimens. The Landscape
Officer sets out that it is positive that the design has been revised to show T7 as retained
and garden retaining walls offset from tree Root Protection Areas (RPAs).

22.

Streetscene Services: No issues with refuse vehicles entering the site as long as vehicles
are not blocking the road and causing obstruction.

23.

Yorkshire Water: No objection, subject to condition requiring the scheme to be constructed
in accordance with the approved drawings.

24.

Access Officer: applicant should provide a H10 form.

25

Flood Risk Management: No objection, subject to a condition requiring the scheme to be
constructed in accordance with the submitted drainage details.

26.

Contaminated Land: No objection, subject to conditions
RELEVANT PLANNING POLICIES:
The Development Plan
Page 24

27.

Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires the application to
be determined in accordance with the development plan unless material considerations
indicate otherwise. For the purposes of decision making, the Development Plan for Leeds
currently comprises the following documents:
•
•
•
•

The Leeds Core Strategy (Amended 2019)
Saved Unitary Development Plan Policies (2006), included as Appendix 1 of the Core
Strategy
The Natural Resources & Waste Local Plan (NRWLP, Adopted January 2013)
Site Allocations Plan (2019)

28.

These development plan policies are supplemented by supplementary planning guidance
and documents.

29.

The following Core Strategy (CS) policies are relevant:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

General Policy: Sustainable Development and the NPPF
Spatial Policy 1 Location of development
Spatial Policy 2: Hierarchy of Centres
Spatial Policy 6: The Housing Requirement and Allocation of Housing Land
Spatial Policy 7: Distribution of Housing Land and Allocations Policy
Policy H2 New Housing Development on Non-Allocated Site
Policy H3 Density of Residential Development
Policy H4 Housing Mix
Policy H9 – Minimum Space Standards
Policy H10 – Accessible Housing Standards
Policy P10 Design
Policy P12 Landscape quality, character and biodiversity of townscapes is preserved
or enhanced
Policy T1 – Transport Management
Policy T2 Accessibility requirements and new development
Policy G2 – Creation of Tree Cover
Policy G9 Biodiversity Improvements
Policy EN1 Climate Change and carbon dioxide reduction
Policy EN2 Sustainable design and construction
Policy EN5 Managing flood risk
Policy EN8 Electric Vehicle Charging Infrastructure
Policy ID2 Planning Obligations and Developer Contributions

Unitary Development Plan (UDP) saved policies of relevance are listed, as follows:
•
•
•
•
•
•
30.

Policy GP1 Land use and the Proposals Map
Policy GP5 General planning considerations
Policy BD2 Design and siting of new buildings
Policy BD5 Amenity and new Buildings
Policy LD1 Seeks to ensure that development is adequately landscaped
Policy N39A Sustainable Drainage Systems

The Natural Resources and Waste Local Plan (NRWLP) sets out where land is needed to
enable the City to manage resources, e.g. minerals, energy, waste and water over the next
15 years, and identifies specific actions which will help use natural resources in a more
efficient way. Relevant policies are as follows:
Page 25

•
•
•
•
•
•

General Policy 1: Support for Sustainable Developments
Policy AIR 1: The Management of Air Quality through Development
Policy WATER 2: Protection of Water Quality
Policy WATER 7: Surface Water Run-Off
Policy LAND 1: Contaminated Land
Policy Land 2: Development and Trees

Supplementary Planning Guidance / Documents:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Neighbourhoods for Living SPG (2003)
Neighbourhoods For Living Memoranda to 3rd Edition (2015)
Street Design Guide SPD (2009)
Sustainable Design and Construction SPD (2011)
Guideline Distances from Development to Trees (2011)
Parking SPD (2016)
Accessible Leeds SPD (2016)
Sustainable Urban Drainage SPG (2004)
Designing for Community Safety: A Residential Design Guide SPD (2007)
LCC Achieving Net Gain for Biodiversity - Guidance for Developers (Draft)
S106 Agreements and Developer Contributions
Building for Tomorrow Today, Sustainable Design and Construction SPD (2011)
Strategic Flood Risk Assessment DPD (2011).

Site Allocations Plan (SAP) (2019)
31.

The Site Allocations Plan was adopted in July 2019. Following a statutory challenge, Policy
HG2, so far as it relates to sites which immediately before the adoption of the SAP were
within the green belt, has been remitted to the Secretary of State The ongoing remittal is at
an advanced stage, with public comments on the main modifications proposed closing in
late January 2022. The Inspector will take these representations into account before
issuing final conclusions. However, at this stage it remains that Policy HG2 is to be treated
as not adopted. All other policies within the SAP remain adopted and should be afforded
full weight.
This site is covered in the SAP under Policy RTC1 which relates to designation of centre
boundaries, shopping areas and protected shopping frontages.
Roundhay Ward Neigbourhood Design Statement:

32.

Roundhay Ward Neighbourhood Design Statement (October 2010) was delivered by
residents within Roundhay Ward and is adopted as a Supplementary Planning Document.
It represents the values residents ascribe to living in the Roundhay Ward; the community’s
aspirations to retain and develop the intrinsic qualities and characteristics as reflected in the
built and environmental qualities of the area; and the aim to ensure it remains as a unique
and distinctive residential area. As a Supplementary Planning Document, the
Neighbourhood Design Statement is to be taken as a material consideration in the
determination of planning applications within the Ward.
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)

33.

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) sets out the Government’s planning
policies for England and how these are expected to be applied. It sets out the
Government’s requirements for the planning system to ensure the delivery of sustainable
Page 26

development through the planning system and to promote good design, but all to the extent
that it is relevant, proportionate and necessary. The NPPF must be taken into account in
the preparation of local and neighbourhood plans and is a material consideration in
planning decisions.
34.

The introduction of the NPPF has not changed the legal requirement that applications for
planning permission must be determined in accordance with the development plan unless
material considerations indicate otherwise. The policy guidance in Annex 1 to the NPPF is
that due weight should be given to relevant policies in existing plans according to their
degree of consistency with the NPPF. The closer the policies in the plan to the policies in
the NPPF, the greater the weight they may be given.

35.

Paragraph 7 of the NPPF states that the purpose of the planning system is to contribute to
the achievement of sustainable development. Paragraph 8 goes on to note that achieving
sustainable development means that the planning system has three overarching objectives
- economic, social and environmental objectives – which are interdependent and need to be
pursued in mutually supportive ways.

36.

Paragraph 10 sets out that at the heart of the NPPF is a presumption in favour of
sustainable development. Paragraph 11 states that decision taking this means approving
development proposals that accord with an up-to-date development plan without delay.
Paragraph 12 states that the presumption in favour of sustainable development does not
change the statutory status of the development plan as the starting point for decision
making.

37.

Paragraph 48 sets out that in decision taking local planning authorities may give weight to
relevant policies in emerging plans according to the stage of its preparation, the extent to
which there are unresolved objections and the degree of consistency with the NPPF.

38.

Paragraph 56 outlines that planning conditions should be kept to a minimum, but can be
imposed where they are necessary, relevant to planning and to the development to be
permitted, enforceable, precise and reasonable. Paragraph 57 sets out that planning
obligations must only be sought where they are necessary, directly related to the
development, and fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to the development.
Paragraph 58 sets out that where up-to-date policies have set out the contributions
expected from development, planning applications that comply with them should be
assumed to be viable.

39.

Section 5 of the NPPF is entitled ‘Delivering a sufficient supply of homes’.

40.

Section 8 of the NPPF is entitled ‘Promoting healthy and safe communities’ and sets out at
paragraph 91 that planning decisions should aim to achieve healthy, inclusive and safe
places including encouraging layouts that would encourage walking and cycling. Paragraph
91 requires planning decisions to take into account and support the delivery of local
strategies to improve health, social and cultural well-being for all sections of the community.
Paragraph 98 sets out that access to a network of high-quality open spaces and
opportunities for sport and physical activity is important for the health and well-being of
communities. Paragraph 100 sets out that planning decisions should protect and enhance
public rights of way and access.

41.

Section 9 of the NPPF is entitled ‘Promoting sustainable transport’ and sets out at
paragraph 102 that transport issues should be considered from the earliest stage of
development proposals including opportunities to promote walking, cycling and public
transport. Paragraph 104 also sets out that the environmental impacts of traffic and
transport infrastructure can be identified, assessed and taken into account and that patterns
Page 27

of movement, streets, parking and other transport considerations are integral to the design
of schemes, and contribute to making high quality places.
41.

Paragraph 111 states the development should only be prevented or refused on highways
grounds if there would be an unacceptable impact on highway safety, or the residual
cumulative impacts on the road network would be severe. Within this context, paragraph
112 sets out, amongst other things, that development should give priority to pedestrian and
cycle movements both within the scheme and with neighbouring areas, minimize the scope
for conflicts between pedestrians, cyclists and vehicles and be designed to enable charging
of plug-in and other ultra-low emission vehicles in safe, accessible and convenient
locations.

42.

Section 11 of the NPPF is entitled ‘Making effective use of land’ and at paragraph 119 sets
out that planning decisions should promote an effective use of land in meeting the need for
homes and other uses, whilst safeguarding and improving the environment and ensuring
safe and healthy living conditions.

43.

Section 12 of the NPPF is entitled ‘Achieving well-designed places’ and at paragraph 126
states that the creation of high-quality buildings and places is fundamental to what the
planning and development process should achieve. Paragraph 126 goes on to state that
good design is a key aspect of sustainable development, creates better places in which to
live and work and helps make development acceptable to communities.

44.

Paragraph 130 states that planning decisions should ensure, amongst other things, that
development is visually attractive as a result of good architecture, layout and appropriate
and effective landscaping. Paragraph 130 sets out that there should be early discussion
between applicants, the local planning authority and the local community about the design
and style of emerging schemes. In assessing planning applications, local planning
authorities should have regard to the outcome of these and related processes (paragraph
133).

45.

Paragraph 134 states that permission should be refused for development of poor design
that fails to take the opportunities available for improving the character and quality of an
area and the way it functions, taking into account any local design standards or style guides
in plans or supplementary planning documents.

46.

Section 14 of the NPPF is entitled ‘Meeting the challenge of climate change, flooding and
coastal change and at paragraph 152 sets out that the planning system should support the
transition to a low carbon future in a changing climate.

47.

Section 15 of the NPPF is entitled ‘Conserving and enhancing the natural environment’.
Paragraph 174 states that planning decisions should contribute to and enhance the natural
and local environment including through minimising impacts and providing net gains for
biodiversity, including by establishing coherent ecological networks that are more resilient
to current and future pressures.
Climate Change

48.

The Council declared a climate change emergency on 27th of March 2019 in response to
the UN’s report on Climate Change. The Planning Act 2008 alongside the Climate Change
Act 2008 sets out that climate mitigation and adaptation are central principles of planmaking. The NPPF makes clear at paragraph 153 and footnote 53 that the planning system
should help to shape places in ways that contribute to radical reductions in greenhouse gas
emissions in line with the objectives of the Climate Change Act 2008.
Page 28

49.

As part of the Council’s Best Council Plan 2020-2025, the Council seeks to promote a less
wasteful, low carbon economy. The Council’s Development Plan includes a number of
planning policies which seek to meet this aim, as does the NPPF. These are material
planning considerations in determining planning applications.
MAIN ISSUES:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Principle of Development
Housing Mix
Impact Upon the Character of the Area
Landscape
Highways Consideration
Residential Amenity
Public Representation

APPRAISAL:
Principle of Development
50.

The site is approximately 0.47 hectares in size and was previously used as a car park to a
former supermarket. It contains the remnants of the car parking and areas of mature trees,
shrubs and vegetation, some probably self-seeded.

51.

The loss of car parking within a town centre is not ideal, however the site is privately
owned, fenced off and not linked to any commercial use therefore there is limited
justification to resist the development on this basis.

52.

The site is located within Oakwood Town Centre which is identified in Core Strategy Policy
P1 and designated by SAP Policy RTC1. Spatial Policy 2 directs retailing, offices, intensive
leisure and culture, and community development to designated town centres to promote
their vitality and viability as the focus for shopping, employment, leisure, culture, and
community services. It goes on to highlight that proposals which would undermine that
approach will not be supported. Policy P2 whilst recognising the role of town centres in
providing shopping and services intended to meet weekly and day-to-day requirements also
encourages new housing above ground floor in the primary and secondary shopping
frontages, or outside the shopping frontages, providing it would not compromise the
function of the town centre.

53.

Whilst Policy SP2 does not explicitly refer to housing, national guidance and Policy P2
recognises the role it can play in complementing the key town centre uses. As the
application site is not specifically identified as Primary Shopping Area or being within any
protected shopping, it is not considered that the development would compromise the vitality
or viability of the town centre. The housing development on the site is therefore not
considered to conflict with policy SP2 or P2 of the Core Strategy.

54.

Leeds Core Strategy Spatial Policy 6 sets the housing requirement for the plan period and
the Leeds Site Allocations Plan identifies housing land for housing delivery in order to meet
the wider housing requirement in Leeds. It is recognised that in this approach the plan is
reliant on a proportion of housing coming forward on non-allocated or ‘windfall’ sites.

55.

The application site constitutes non-allocated land as defined by policy H2 of the Leeds
Core Strategy.
Page 29

56.

Policy H2 itself includes a number of criteria that new housing developments on nonallocated land should meet. The first part of policy H2 requires new housing development
on non-allocated land to not exceed the capacity of local infrastructure and to meet the
accessibility standards set out in Table 2 of Appendix 3 of the Core Strategy.

57.

The proposed development is for a relatively small number of units and is located within
walking distance of local stores, amenities and services e.g. convenience store, post office,
library, public house, restaurants, schools, doctors and dentist. A Tesco superstore, DIY
store and sports retailer are located within half a kilometre to the south of the site. There
are bus stops on Roundhay Road. The location of the site in close proximity to existing local
services with good road and public transport links, suggests that the proposed dwellings on
the site would not exceed the capacity of local infrastructure and therefore the proposal is
considered to meet the aims of Policy H2 in this respect.

58.

The second part of policy H2 states, amongst other things, that greenfield land should not
be developed if it holds intrinsic value as amenity space or for recreation or for nature
conservation, or makes a valuable contribution to the visual, historic and/or spatial
character of an area.

59.

The eastern part of the site contains a hardstanding area of disused car parking whilst the
western part is dominated by trees, shrubs and vegetation. The site is tucked away behind
surrounding development and has amenity value for those residents who overlook it. The
proposed scheme focusses development mainly on the area of hardstanding, whilst the
natural green areas would be incorporated into gardens and therefore the green spaces of
the site will be retained. Whilst there are trees that would be lost, these would be replaced
with additional tree planting. In general, it is considered that the proposal would not
undermine visual, historic and/or spatial character of an area and therefore the proposal
does not conflict with the second part of policy H2.
Housing Mix

60.

Core Strategy Policy H4 states that “Developments should include an appropriate mix of
dwelling types and sizes to address needs measured over the long term taking into account
the nature of the development and character of the location.”

61.

The scheme consists entirely of 3-bed dwellings which does not comply with the preferred
housing mix set out within the explanatory text of the policy, which prefers a mix of 1, 2, 3
and 4 bed dwellings. Therefore, the preferred housing mix has not been met. It is important
to note that the explanatory text to the policy, at paragraph 5.2.11 sets outs that “For small
developments, achievement of an appropriate mix to meet long term needs is not
overriding. The form of development and character of the area should be into account too.”

62.

It is considered that the deviation from policy H4 is acceptable in this instance, as the
proposed housing development is relatively small, with only eight dwellings being proposed.
The size of the development does not allow for much flexibility in terms of the different
house types that can be proposed on the site without compromising the cohesiveness of
the development as a whole. In any case there is a demand in the area for three-bedroom
houses and the proposal will meet this need. It should also be noted that policy H4 provides
a preferred but not mandatory housing mix and that “…the policy is worded to offer
flexibility” (para. 5.2.11 of the Core Strategy).
Impact upon the Character of the Area

63.

The application site is tucked away from public view behind the residential dwellings of
Oakwell Mount from the south and an embankment of mature trees and dwellings providing
a screen from Fitzroy Drive (to the north and north west). Commercial properties of
Page 30

Roundhay Road screens the site from the east. The most prominent views of the site would
be from the public car park behind the Home Bargains retail store. This is also the most
prominent view from the adjacent conservation area. However, this is a very limited and
localised view.
64.

The residential area that surrounds the site has a typical leafy suburban appearance. To
the north, south and west of the site are traditional two storey semi-detached pitched roof
dwellings. The commercial centre (to the east), although featuring buildings of varied
design, has a low rise feel with buildings generally one and two storeys high; some three
storey buildings are also present. The commercial buildings have traditional pitched roofs
and feature upper floor windows that are of a domestic proportion and scale.

65.

The objectors and local Ward Councillors have raised concerns in relation to the height of
the dwellings. Whilst it is noted that the dwellings are taller when compared to the dwellings
on Oakwood Mount, the site being fairly well separated from the established streets that
surround the site, it is considered that some flexibility can be offered when considering the
design and scale of the dwellings that can be accommodated on the site. In this instance,
given the relative separation of the site from the immediate residential estate, it is
considered that the height of the proposed dwellings, in this instance, is not a concern.

66.

Moreover, similar to the majority of the buildings in the area the dwellings will generally
have a two-storey form but with accommodation in the roof. It is not considered that the
proposals will appear unreasonably dominant when compared to the other dwellings and
buildings of the area.

67.

In terms of their design, the basic rectangular shapes of the proposed dwellings with
traditional pitched roofs, together with the use of traditional materials such as render and
stone, will allow the dwellings to tie in well with the simple traditional dwellings found on
Oakwell Mount and Fitzory Drive. In general, it is considered that the dwellings proposed
will not be out of keeping with the established character of the area either in terms of their
design, scale or spatial setting.

68.

The general layout of the dwellings is acceptable, with the front elevations facing the
proposed new access road with the garden areas located to the rear. The gardens will be
concealed from public view and allows for sufficient privacy.

69.

Following consultation with the Agent, the large parking forecourt to the front, shown on the
original plan, has been broken up with a good level of greenery proposed to the front and
beside the access road. This allows the development to appear in keeping with the leafy
suburban feel of the immediate residential street. The hedging proposed between the
commercial area to the east and the proposed residential development, acts as a green
buffer that provides a visual transition between the commercial and residential settings.

70.

The scheme meets the separation distance guidance set out within SPG13, with the side
elevation of Plot 1 maintaining a distance of approximately 14m from the adjacent boundary
with No’s 27 and 27a (and over 26m from the rear elevation of those properties as scaled
from the application plans) and the front elevation maintaining approximately 20m from the
boundary with the carpark opposite. Furthermore, the properties will feature over 20m long
rear gardens. It is considered that the separation distances are in excess of those set out in
Neighbourhoods for Living, and that the separation distances from boundaries are
adequate to ensure the site does not appear overdeveloped and crammed. For these
reasons is considered that the proposed development has appropriate regard to the
established character of the area and will not harm views into and out of the conservation
area. The retention of the embankment of trees and supplementary planting is a significant
positive feature of the scheme and this is discussed in more detail below.
Landscape

Page 31

71.

Members of the public and the Local Word Councillor have raised concerns in relation to
the number of trees that appeared to already have been felled on the site. Whilst this
situation is not ideal, the Enforcement Team have investigated the matter and found that
protected trees have not been illegally felled within the site. The Council had also referred
the case to the Forestry Commission, who found no issues with the tree works that had
taken place on the site.

72.

It was however found that the applicant had obtained permission in 2017 to fell a Sycamore
(TPO tree). This was granted subject to a replacement silver birch tree being planted
elsewhere on the site. The silver birch was however never planted on site, and the council
has instructed the applicant to plant this tree. The planting of this tree can be secured by
condition.

73.

In so far as the application is concerned, two trees are proposed to be removed T3 (Ash)
and T4 (Sycamore) both are Category C trees (trees of low quality). In light of this the
council’s Landscape Officer has not raised objections to their loss. These trees will be
removed to make way for the access road. Approximately 9 new trees will be planted,
which is far in excess of the requirement as set out in the Council’s Natural Resources and
Waste DPD policy LAND2, which requires 3 replacement trees for every 1 lost. In addition
to the new trees, additional hedging and shrubs are proposed and the existing trees will be
protected during the construction period.

74.

Overall it is considered that the landscaping proposals will provide for a good quality
landscape and, in combination with additional trees and shrubs that will be planted, the
scheme will provide for an overall enhancement in respect of biodiversity, as is advised by
Leeds Core Strategy Policy G9, which requires developments to demonstrate an overall net
gain for biodiversity. Moreover, the Landscape Officer has assessed the landscape scheme
and the proposed tree removal and has raised not objections in respect of these. Conditions
will be imposed to ensure the tree landscaping scheme, is fully implemented and that trees
are protected during the construction period.
Highways Considerations

75.

Core Strategy policy T2 and saved UDP policy GP5 note that development proposals must
resolve detailed planning considerations and should seek to maximise highway safety. This
means that the applicants must demonstrate that the development can achieve safe access
and will not overburden the capacity of existing infrastructure. As outlined within the spatial
policies of the Core Strategy, it is also expected that development is sited within sustainable
locations and meets the accessibility criteria of the Core Strategy.

76.

It is noted that the proposal would be constructed over an existing parking facility within the
designated boundary of the Oakwood District Centre. As such, the proposals would result in
a permanent reduction in the availability of public parking for the wider commercial area.
However, the site is currently fenced off for commercial or public use and it is understood
that the existing car park is not owned or legally attached to any commercial use linked to
the District Centre. A highway objection to the loss of parking would therefore be difficult to
justify.

77.

It is considered that the site meets all accessibility standards for a development of this type.
The site is within walking distance of local amenities with excellent transport links on
Roundhay Road.

78.

The proposed access is located between dwellings number 29 and 31 Oakwell Mount via a
priority vehicular junction. The Highways Officer has evaluated that access point and has
not raised highway safety issues. Concerns were raised by Highways Officers, Ward
Members and members of the public that a private gated road was being proposed.
Concerns were raised by Streetscene Services that bin lorries would find it difficult to
Page 32

access the gated road and that bins would need to be dropped off at the main adopted
highway for collection. As a result of these concerns, revised plans were submitted to
ensure the access road was built to an adopted standard with the gate at the front entrance
being removed. The Highways Team has confirmed that the proposed road is designed to
acceptable standards.
79.

The Highways Officer has stated that the new access will require a separate technical
approval and a s278 Highway Agreement, this can be secured via a condition. A street
lighting column may need relocating on Oakwell Mount and this will be determined at the
detailed s278 stage for the new vehicular access.

80.

A total of 20 parking spaces are proposed including the garages. The revised layout
incorporates bicycle parking for those units without garages, and electric vehicle charging
points will be provided. Accordingly, the level of parking, EV charging points and cycle
parking provisions are considered acceptable and the Highways Officer has not raised
significant concern in respect to these details. Conditions will be attached to ensure these
details are delivered on site

81.

The Highways Officer has also recommended a planning obligation be sought (by way of a
S106 Agreement) for a contribution towards traffic management measures – including a
Traffic Regulation Order (TRO). The S106 Agreement will need to be signed before the
decision is issued.

82.

Given the above, subject to the inclusion of conditions and S106 agreement, the proposal is
considered to provide a suitable means of access and parking and the development meets
all other accessibility requirements.
Residential Amenity
(a) Neighbouring dwellings

83.

Within the Council’s Neighborhoods for Living document SPG 13 a range of minimum
guidance distances are set out to protect the privacy and amenity of existing and future
residents, albeit with an understanding that it is inappropriate to simply apply these
distances without consideration of local character. Guidance within the SPG seeks to
secure a minimum distance of 10.5 metres from a main ground floor (living room/dining
room) window to the boundary, 12m from side elevation windows to main ground level
windows and 7.5 metres from a bedroom or ground floor kitchen window to the boundary.

84.

The closest dwellings to the proposed development are No.s 27, 27a and 29 Oakwell
Mount (located southeast of the site). It is noted that the proposed units would be sited at a
higher topographical level than the existing dwellings on Oakwell Mount. However, the side
elevation of the nearest proposed dwelling (Plot 1) will be located approximately 14m from
the boundary of the said dwellings and are shown to be over 20m from the rear elevation
windows of the said dwellings themselves. Therefore, the proposal exceeds the 12m
separation distance as advised by the guidance set out within SPG13, and therefore it is
not considered that the proposal will significantly over-dominate, overshadow or cause a
loss of light or outlook to the detriment of the amenity of the occupiers of the said dwellings.

85.

Given the differences in ground levels, the far greater separation distances that exists
between the development and the dwellings highlighted in the above paragraph, and as
well as the presence of landscaping that screens the site, it is considered that the proposal
will not cause harm to the occupiers of dwellings that adjoin the site by way of
overshadowing or dominance.
Page 33

86.

The front elevation windows of the proposed development will face the car park and retail
space to the south east and the rear elevation will face the raised landscape areas to the
west. The side elevation windows, particularly of Plot 1, that face the residential dwellings of
Oakwood Mount, are landing windows. Taking into account the separation distances of
approximately 14m from the dwellings in direct line of sight from these windows i.e. No.s
27, 27a and 29 Oakwell Mount, it is not considered that the proposed windows will raise
overlooking issues and the proposal more than meets the separation distance guidance of
12m that is set out within SPG13.

87.

It is noted that the proposed development will unavoidably lead to an increase in vehicle
movements through neighbouring streets and in particular where the new access road cuts
in between the residential dwellings of No. 29 and 31 Oakwood Mount. Comments have
been made by objectors that the additional homes in the area will increase noise levels. It is
considered that residential development of eight homes will generate relatively low levels of
traffic from comings and goings and therefore the noise levels are not considered to be
significant. Furthermore, the residential use of site will be much less noise intensive than
the former use of the site as a car park.
(b) Future Occupiers

88.

New residential development should look to provide a good level of amenity for future
occupiers. This includes providing living accommodation which is of an appropriate size,
offers appropriate outlook, gives good daylight and sunlight penetration and protects
privacy. This also includes providing good quality outdoor amenity areas for the enjoyment
of occupiers. Local plan policies and guidance including in ‘Neighbourhoods for Living’, also
seeks to secure these same basic requirements.
In considering the above, regarding the issue of minimum space standards, Policy H9
requires all new dwellings to comply with the national criteria. It is considered that the
houses proposed will meet the advice set out within Core Strategy policy H9, for three
bedroom four person houses. The overall floor area of the dwellings will exceed the 90m2
floor space requirement for houses of this type, with the smallest dwelling proposed with a
floor area measuring approximately 112m2. The bedroom areas will also meet minimum
space standards with single bedrooms being 7.5m2 in floor area and the smallest double
bedrooms being 13.58m2.

89.

The proposal is for 4 of the dwellings, Plots 2, 4, 6 and 7, to meet the requirements of M4(2)
‘accessible and adaptable dwellings’. The total number exceeding the 30% target set out
within Core Strategy policy H10. A condition will be imposed to ensure the plots identified
are designed to meet M4(2) accessibility standards.

90.

The garden sizes proposed will also meet/exceed the minimum recommended garden size
areas of two thirds of the gross floor area of the dwelling included within the Council’s
Neighbourhoods for Living SPG. As has already been mentioned within the report, the
distances between properties are also in accordance with those separation distances set
out in the Neighbourhoods for Living SPG and the combination of all of these factors will
ensure that the properties provide for a good level of amenity for future occupiers.
Public Representations

91.

Comments have been made by members of the public and the local Ward Councillor that a
large number of trees have been removed from the site some of which may have been TPO
trees. As has been mentioned within the report, the tree felling complaints have been
investigated by the Local Planning Authority and it has been found that the tree felling that
has occurred is not unlawful.
Page 34

92.

Comments have been made that the applicant has not notified neighbours of the proposed
development. Whilst the local planning authority does encourage developers to engage with
the local community, this is not a requirement under any planning legislation. Therefore, the
application cannot be refused on this issue.

93.

Comments have been made that the City Council has not adequately advertised the
planning application. The application was advertised by way of site notice posted on
03.06.21 and a second set of notices were posted on 14.07.2022. Furthermore, the site
notices being posted in the immediate vicinity of the site. The level of publicity complies with
planning legislation.

94.

Members of the public comment that the proposal will adversely affect wildlife. It is not
considered that the proposal would affect any protected wildlife that are known to be active
within the site.

95.

Concerns were raised in relation to the highway safety around the access point. The
concerns have been evaluated by the Highways Officer who has not raised significant
concerns.

96.

The comments made that the proposed parking restrictions at the access point (double
yellows) would push on street parking issues further up the residential street of Oakwood
Mount, are noted. Most the dwellings on Oakwood Mount feature off street parking and it is
as such considered that any parking restriction would not cause local residents significant
parking difficulties.

97.

The comments made that the excessive height of the proposed dwellings would adversely
impact the neighbouring residential dwellings by way of overshadowing, overlooking, and
dominance, have been addressed within the report. It is considered that the proposed
dwellings are located a sufficient distance away from the immediate neighbouring dwellings
to the development so as not cause these adverse issues.

98.

The comments made that the close proximity of the proposed new access road to
neighbouring dwellings will cause disturbance by way of noise from comings and goings
have been addressed within the report. It is considered that the levels of comings and
goings from the access point would not be significant given only eight new dwellings are
proposed.

99.

Comments have been made that the gates at the access point to the development would
cause noise issues. The gates have now been removed from the plans.

100.

Members of the public have noted that there are discrepancies in the supporting documents
with regards to the size of the dwellings and the number of bedrooms being proposed and
with regards to the tree within Plot 6 not being subject to a TPO. The contradictions have
been noted. This issue does not affect the determination of the application and more
importantly the plans that are being considered are accurate.

101.

The comments made with regards to the scale and design of the proposed dwellings and
their impact upon the character of the area has been discussed within the report. The
design and scale of the dwellings is considered to be acceptable.

102.

The comments made in relation the bins having to be collected form Oakwell Mount are
noted. Revised plans have been submitted that shows the access road designed to
adoptable standards which now allow a refuse vehicle to access the new road to collect
bins.
Page 35

103.

Comments have been made that the residential development will not be compatible with the
adjacent commercial units in that the future occupants would be subjected to a high level of
noise. Residential developments within or close to commercial units i.e. within town centre
location are not uncommon and planning policy encourages the location of residential
developments within or close to commercial centres. Therefore, it is not considered that the
development is incompatible with the adjacent commercial centre.

104.

Members of the public have commented that the dwellings would potentially be converted
into HMO’s. There is no evidence that’s suggests that these dwelling would be converted to
HMO’s, in any case this is an area where an Article 4 direction is in place that prevents
dwellings being converted into HMO’s without planning consent.

105.

Comments have been made that the development should have direct access to the
adjacent retail unit. However, there is no overriding need for the site to have access to the
adjacent retail units, which in any case are within walking distance from the proposed
access point to the site.

106.

The comments have been made that the kitchen areas proposed within the units being too
small. The kitchen areas proposed, which for most of the dwellings, is designed as an open
plan area linked to the dining and living space, are considered to be of a good size.
Moreover, as has been discussed within the report, the dwellings meet the space standards
set out within policy H9 of the Core Strategy.

107.

The comments made that a full survey is required of the landscape outside the site, is
unreasonable. The tree survey has indicated all landscaping that would be affected by the
development and it would be unreasonable to ask for tree surveys to be carried out of the
wider area.

108.

The comments made that a topographical survey is required given the difference in land
levels within the site are noted. The details of the site provided by the applicant are
considered more than adequate to make an assessment on the impact of the development
on affected landscaping.

109.

Members of the public have commented that the differences in land levels within the site
means that the garden areas are not usable. It is noted that the garden areas will be
located on a slope, however, this would not render the gardens unusable. The gardens are
of a significant length and it is not unusual for gardens to slope.

110.

The comments made highlighting the presence of Japanese knotweed within the site, is
noted. A condition will be imposed to ensure that the knotweed is safely removed.

111.

Comments have been made that the proposed works for the access point may result in the
foundations of No. 29 Oakwell Mount becoming exposed. The works are proposed within
the redline boundary of the site, and it is not considered that the proposal would result in
the exposure of the foundations of the Oakwell Mount properties. As a precaution a
condition will be imposed to ensure the contractor undertakes ground investigations and
site inspections to identify the location, type and depth of the foundations of 29 and 31
Oakwell Mount.

112.

The supporting comments from the occupant of No. 31 Oakwell Mount are noted. The
comments made that the Council need to ensure that the land adjacent to No.31 is not
destabilised during the construction period. This issue will be covered by the condition
highlighted in the above paragraph.
Page 36

113.

Comments have been made by Leeds Civic Trust that the site is not suitable for housing.
This issue has been addressed in the report and it is considered that the proposal is
acceptable in principle and complies with national and local policy guidance, which
encourages new developments within brown field land close to local services.

114.

Comments have been made that the garden space being proposed is inadequate. As has
been mentioned in the report, the garden space meets policy guidance.

115.

The comments made with regards to the proposed solar panels are not relevant. The
application is not proposing solar panels.

116.

The comments made by Councillor Martin in relation to the construction of a gated
community, is noted. The gates to the front of the development have been removed.

117.

Concerns raised in relation to how the foul water drainage from 25, 25A, 27, 27A and 29
Oakwell Mount, that passes under the development site, will be managed- particularly given
that the proposed road will be unadopted. The revised plans now show the proposed
access road to be designed to adoptable standards. In any case, the drainage currently
passes through private land and therefore currently the residents of the site would not have
rights to access the land.

118.

Comments made that several revised plans have been submitted, which has caused
confusion on what is being proposed, is noted. All plans that were not relevant have now
been removed from the public access system.

119.

Concerns have been raised in relation to how construction traffic would access the site. The
applicant has advised that the proposed access road between No. 29 and 31 Oakwood
Mount will be utilised by the contractors. The access road will be built first, which will allow
the contactors easy access into the site. A condition will be attached to ensure construction
practices within the site are appropriately managed taking into consideration highway safety
and the living conditions of neighbouring residents.
CONCLUSION:

120.

This proposal seeks permission for residential development on a site that is not allocated
for housing, but the proposal meets the requirement of Policy H2 and is considered to be
acceptable in principle. The proposed two/three storey traditionally designed dwellings are
considered to tie in well with the residential dwellings in the immediate vicinity and are not
considered to harm the character of the area.

121.

Whilst two trees are proposed to be removed, the proposal provides a robust landscaping
scheme that mitigates the impact of the tree loss, promises replacement planting in excess
of the policy requirement and provides for a biodiversity net gain. Due to the position of the
dwellings in relation to the neighbouring dwellings, it is not considered that the proposal
would give rise to significant issues of overshadowing, dominance or overlooking – either
for existing residents or future occupiers of the proposed development.

122.

The amenity offered to future occupants is also acceptable, with the size of the dwellings
meeting the space standards established within Policy H9 of the Core Strategy, a good
level of outlook and light is proposed from all habitable room windows and the garden
space meets the advice given within SPG13 Neigbourhoods for Living.

123

The Highways Officer has assessed the scheme and has found the new access road to be
of a good design that does not raise significant highway safety concerns. The level of
parking is also considered to be acceptable.
Page 37

124.

Taking into account all relevant factors, including representations made, the application is
therefore recommended for approval, subject to the conditions outlined in this report and
any others which may be deemed necessary, alongside the securing of planning
obligation(s) by way of a Section 106 Agreement.

Background Papers:
Planning Application File: 21/03299/FU
Certificate of Ownership: Certificate A signed by the agent.

Page 38

RY
1a

DE
R
G
R

9

A
DE
N
1

1

S

2

12

9

GLED

HO W

LA NE

11

24

36a

33
35

100.3m

Trees

31

34

34 a

34 b
36

1

2

5a

LAN E

1 to
5

C
ST

47

2

103.3m

7

'S
INE
ER
AT H

39

49

LK
WA

89.6m

5

GLE DHO W

57

55

5

3

1

ST MA RG

IN
C

2

1

10

NE

1

7

Clock
Tower

Shelter

2

4

Car Park

8

8

FITZ RO Y DRIVE

Shelter

85.0m

Surgery

6
49

1

7

10

9

66
1

E
W

65
65 7
9

R IS

8
47

HO

65
5

ED
GL

ge

18

ra
Ga

nk
ce
ali

Ho

e
us

29

1

6

5

ga

UE
EN
AV

UE

OO
KW
OA

18

47

ESC

2a

RO
U

OA
KW
OO

a

2

63 3

37

EN T

25

ND
AR
Y

RO

BA
CK

AD

b

a

20

1

b

BO
U

23

63 3

D

63
3

L CR

63
5

36

4

EL

OO

41

KW

63 5

OA
KW

13

63
7

39

27

OA

21/03299/FU

El Sub Sta

31

a
25

12

29

85.6m
GVC

32

25

27
a

ND
HA
YR
OA

D

20

28

D

DR
IV

45
0

E

63
9

23

23

BA
CK

NT

OA
KW
OO

OU
LM

81.7m

D

AV
EN

64
1

33

EL

E

D

20

Pa

13

rk

8

4

te

7

3

2

8

27

64
9

a

46
2

Shelter

KW

LB

PO

19

OA

IV
Y DR

47
0

47
0

b Sta
El Su

28

n
Fra

47
6

17a

28 c
28 b

28 a

ry
ge

47
2

r
Su

Ba

1 to 30

Nicho lson Cou rt

2
49

LB

2

3

17

5
66

0
49
8
48

9

TCB

Hall

49 8

18

26

FITZ RO

UE

LA

Shelter

EN

W

DRIV E

AV

HO

ES

ED

2

PR

GL

9

ARET'S

91.4m

1a

1

11a

42
63 1

1

KW
OA

OA
KW
E

40

2

LL
DR
IV

E

38
21

Mast

3

OO

96.0m

D
O
NO

5

K

L

62 1

EL

30

KW

10

19

T

19

E
AC

NS

RA
1

CA

RV
IE

W

RAV

E NS

1

NS

2

VE

C AR

ta

Path (um)

16

2

RA

El S
ub S

UE

14

Path (um)

SC
AR
AV
EN

60 9

RA
V EN

LB

AV E

2

NU E

60 5

RW
AL
CA

BA
CK

NS

11

28

VE

RA

VE

NS

1

12

CA

R

K

TE

RR

11

VE
RA

Fr
o
Cl n tli
os ne
e

12

CA

R

11

7

20

M

O

15

UN

11

20

AL
OV

Car
Park

3

OA

25

The Round hay
(PH)

70.4m

Gipton Wood

92.7m

ROU
ND H
AY R
OA D

23
1
5

2

6

Shelter

GE
KIN

U
CO
IN'S
DW

RT

Path

NORTH AND EAST PLANS PANEL

© Crown copyright and database rights 2022 Ordnance Survey 100019567

Page 39

PRODUCED BY CITY DEVELOPMENT, GIS MAPPING & DATA TEAM, LEEDS CITY COUNCIL

SCALE : 1/2500

°

RI
SE
GL
ED
HO
W

OAKWELL
MOUNT
OAKWOOD
housing layout
27

1 to 30
Nicholson Court

y

er

1. Do not scale off drawing
2. All dimensions to be checked on site
3. Any discrepancy between drawn
and specified information to be
notified immediately
4. If in doubt - ASK

rg
Su

7
8
7
7

B

6

6

M4(2)

6

KEY TO SYMBOLS

A

Secure bicycle parking either
within garage or rear garden by
way of a lockable cycle store or
shed.

8

B

5

M4(2)

8

A
4

Each dwelling to be provided with
an electric vehicle charging point.

B

3

5

Bin storage within rear gardens

5

M4(2)

A

4
4

v

2

B

1

bcp

Bin collection point

M4(2)

Plots 2, 4, 6 & 7 to be Building
Regulations AD M4(2) compliant

Supermarket

3
v

3

Page 40

M4(2)

A

p

2

bc

2

1
1

v

25
v

a
25

Visitor electric vehicle
charging point

client

O
U

N

T
31
33
35

37

RO
UN

29

M

63

L

(DLM)

D 03.05.22 Bin collection point relocated from within RPA.
Visitor parking bays adjusted to suit.
600mm hard margin shown continuous
adjacent gated access.
(DLM)
C 21.02.22 Access road amended as requested by client.
Bin collection point relocated.
(DLM)
B 25.10.21 Scheme reduced to 8 units.
Plots 5 & 6 handed.
(DLM)
A 15.06.21
635 Amended in line with LA Transport comments.
b Bicycle parking added.
Electric vehicle charging points added.
Bin storage & collection details added.
633
Drives to Plots 1 & 9 widened to 3.3m.
b
Access radii increased to 4.5m.
Note re. yellow lining added.
(DLM)

5a

EL

Land at
Oakwell Mount
Oakwood, Leeds

RO

(DLM)

AY

W

(DLM)

DH

a

AK

project

G 07.07.22 AD M4(2) compliant types noted.
F 09.06.22 Ramp position amended at access as
requested by highways dept.
E 07.06.22 Access road amended to 5.5m width.
Gated access omitted.

27

AD

63

7

27

O

Amberstone Developments

drawing title

HOUSING LAYOUT

drg. no.

scale

2024.04.01 rev G

1:500@A3

date

drawn by

checked by

March 2021

DLM

DLM

revisions

Existing double yellow lining along Oakwell
Mount to be extended beyond site access.
Refer to engineers drawings for exact details.

2.4
mx

25m

visib
il

ity
sp

lay

s

0

5m

10m
1

633
20m
a

The Well Garden, Branton Green,
Great Ouseburn, North Yorks, YO26 9RT

50m

Tel: 01423 579105
Email: Mail @ ACERarchitectural.co.uk
© COPYRIGHT ACER ARCHITECTURAL LIMITED

Page 41

This page is intentionally left blank

